
City of Geneva, Illinois 
Local Historic District & Landmarks  
Property Inventory Survey 

PARCEL IDENTIFICATION NUMBER (PIN): 
 

LOCAL SIGNIFICANCE RATING: 

Significant 

Contributing 

Non-Contributing – Built After 1987 
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Contributing 

Non-Contributing 

Not Applicable / Not in NR District 
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ARCHITECTURAL STYLE: 
 

NUMBER OF STORIES: 
 

OVERALL PLAN SHAPE: 

DATE OF CONSTRUCTION: 

HISTORIC NAME: 
 
COMMON NAME: 
 

FOUNDATION MATERIAL: 
 
PRIMARY WALL MATERIAL(S): 
 

ENTRY DOOR(S): 

WINDOW MATERIAL: 
 

FRONT PORCH: 
 
VISIBLE SIDE PORCH: 

PRIMARY ROOF FORM: 
 

OTHER SIGNIFICANT ARCHITECTURAL FEATURES: 

Not in HD / Individual Historic Landmark 

PROPERTY ADDRESS: 
 

VISIBLE CHIMNEY: 

CHIMNEY MATERIAL: 
 

GENERAL PROPERTY INFORMATION: 
 

ARCHITECT: 
 
BUILDER: 
WILSON BROTHERS:              OSCAR             BOTH 

ARCHITECTURAL DATA: 
 

WINDOW STYLE: 
 

PRIMARY ROOF MATERIAL: 
 

HPC ACTION: 

   Demolition Approved: 

SIGNIFICANT ALTERATION DATES: 

AUGUST           
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	Other HPC Action: 
	BRIEF HISTORICAL DESCRIPTION: This property is known as the William Wilcox building, mentioned in newspapers as early as 1896. Wilcox was a merchant based out of St Charles. 

In 1899, D. H. Kruschke acquired The Bell department store, originally founded by Joseph Bell. In 1901, Kruschke moved the store from its original location on the southwest corner of State Street and Second Street to the northeast corner, across the intersection. Afterward, Kruschke sold the business to C. Cohen of Chicago. In April 1905, the store was taken over by the Hill Bros. store, run by Fred and George Hill.

The William Wilcox building, located at 115 W. State Street, was torn down by Sherman Huntley and his sons, as reported on September 30, 1921, in the Geneva Republican. Despite the demolition, the building was still occasionally called the Wilcox Building, and the footprints in Sanborn Fire Insurance maps remain fairly consistent. The building underwent storefront alterations in June 1947, with work completed by contractor August Wilson.

In the late 1950s, Wilbur Wille opened the Geneva Tire and Auto Store at 115 W. State Street. Wille later moved the business into the William Wilcox building, where it continued to operate under the Wille family's ownership.

The building continues to have a commercial use today. It contributes to the historic district as an example of the historic evolution of the commercial district.
	SOURCES: GHPC Case Studies; GHM Archives; 2016 Central North Geneva NRHP Update; 1869 Bird's Eye View of Geneva; Sanborn Fire Insurance Maps; Kane County Land Records; Geneva, Illinois: A History of Its Times and Places; Geneva, Illinois: 150 Reminders of 150 Years CC Minutes
	AS1 GENERAL DESCRIPTION: 
	AS2 GENERAL DESCRIPTION: 
	GENERAL DESCRIPTION: 
	LEFT STREET VIEW: 
	RIGHT STREET VIEW: 
	STREET VIEW: 
	ACCESSORY 1: 
	REAR CORNER/ ACCESSORY: 
	CORNER STREET/ ACCESSORY: 
	ACCESSORY 2: 
	ACCESSORY 3: 
	LANDSCAPE 1: 
	LANDSCAPE 2: 
	PROPERTY ADDRESS: 129 West State Street
	SIGNIFICANT ALTERATION DATES: Unknown
	ARCHITECT: Unknown
	DATE OF CONSTRUCTION: c.1920s
	COMMON NAME: B.F. Goodrich/Geneva Tire & Auto Store
	GENERAL PROPERTY INFORMATION: William Wilcox Building
	ARCHITECTURAL DATA: Two-Part Commercial Block, Italianate
	OVERALL PLAN SHAPE: Simple, Back Facing Rectangle
	NUMBER OF STORIES: 2
	FOUNDATION MATERIAL: Not Visible
	PRIMARY WALL MATERIALS: Brick
	FRONT PORCH: Commercial Entry
	VISIBLE SIDE PORCH: N/A
	ENTRY DOORS: Commercial Entry, Non Historic 
	WINDOW MATERIAL: Aluminum/Historic 
	WINDOW STYLE: Picture/Panel; Double Hung 1/1
	PRIMARY ROOF FORM: Flat
	PRIMARY ROOF MATERIAL: Unknown/Not Visible
	VISIBLE CHIMNEY: No
	CHIMNEY MATERIAL: N/A 
	OTHER SIGNIFICANT ARCHITECTURAL FEATURES: 
	PARCEL IDENTIFICATION NUMBER PIN: 12-03-430-009 
	BUILDER: August Wilson
	WILSON BROTHERS: AUGUST


